
NUVEEN GLOBAL CITIES REIT, INC.
SUPPLEMENT NO. 3 DATED AUGUST 16, 2018
TO THE PROSPECTUS DATED APRIL 16, 2018

This prospectus supplement (the “Supplement”) is part of and should be read in conjunction with the prospectus
of Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc. dated April 16, 2018 (the “Prospectus”), Supplement No. 1 dated July 13,
2018 and Supplement dated July 16, 2018. Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms used in this
Supplement shall have the same meanings as in the Prospectus.

The purposes of this Supplement are as follows:

• to disclose the transaction price for each class of our common stock as of September 1, 2018;

• to disclose the calculation of our July 31, 2018 net asset value (“NAV”) per share for each class of our
common stock;

• to update the “Experts” section of the Prospectus;

• to include our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2018; and

• to include certain financial statements related to our Defoor Hills and Tacara properties.

September 1, 2018 Transaction Price

The transaction price for each share class of our common stock for subscriptions accepted as of September 1,
2018 (and repurchases as of August 31, 2018) is as follows:

Transaction Price (per share)

Class T . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $10.25
Class S . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10.25
Class D . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10.25
Class I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10.25

The transaction price for our Class D and Class I shares is equal to such class’s NAV per share as of July 31,
2018. A detailed presentation of the NAV per share is set forth below.

As of July 31, 2018, we had not sold any Class T or Class S shares. The transaction price for our Class T and
Class S shares is based on our aggregate NAV per share as of July 31, 2018. The purchase price of our common
stock for each share class equals the transaction price of such class, plus applicable upfront selling commissions
and dealer manager fees.

July 31, 2018 NAV Per Share

We calculate NAV per share in accordance with the valuation guidelines that have been approved by our board
of directors. Our NAV per share, which is updated as of the last calendar day of each month, is posted on our
website at www.nuveenglobalreit.com. Please refer to “Net Asset Value Calculation and Valuation Guidelines” in
the Prospectus for information on how our NAV is determined. The Advisor is ultimately responsible for
determining our NAV. As of July 31, 2018, our properties have been appraised in accordance with our valuation
guidelines and such appraisals were reviewed by our independent valuation advisor.
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The following tables provide a breakdown of the major components of our NAV as of July 31, 2018 ($ and
shares in thousands):

Components of NAV July 31, 2018

Investment in real property . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $206,808
Investment in real estate-related assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,879
Investment in International Affiliated Funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,040
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,892
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,482
Debt obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . —
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,375)
Stockholder servicing fees payable the following month (1) . . . . . —

Net Asset Value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 232,726

Number of outstanding shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,570

(1) Stockholder servicing fees only apply to Class S, Class T and Class D shares. For purposes of NAV we
recognize the stockholder servicing fee as a reduction of NAV on a monthly basis as such fee is paid. Under
GAAP, we accrue the full cost of the stockholder servicing fee as an offering cost at the time we sell
Class S, Class T and Class D shares. As of July 31, 2018, we have accrued under GAAP approximately
$23,000 of stockholder servicing fees payable to the Dealer Manager related to the Class D shares sold.

The following table provides a breakdown of our total NAV and NAV per share by share class as of July 31,
2018 ($ and shares in thousands, except per share data):

NAV Per Share
Class N
Shares

Class I
Shares

Class D
Shares Total

Net asset value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $231,649 $ 810 $ 267 $232,726
Number of outstanding shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,465 79 26 22,570

NAV per share as of July 31, 2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10.31 10.25 10.25

As of July 31, 2018, we had not sold any Class T or Class S shares. We will disclose the NAV per share for each
outstanding class of common stock in future periods once shares of such class are outstanding.

Set forth below are the weighted averages of the key assumptions in the discounted cash flow methodology used
in the July 31, 2018 valuations, based on property types. Once we own more than one office and retail property,
we will include the key assumptions for such property types.

Property Type Discount Rate

Exit
Capitalization

Rate

Industrial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.2% 6.3%
Multifamily . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.0 5.4
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These assumptions are determined by our independent valuation advisor. A change in these assumptions would
impact the calculation of the value of our property investments. For example, assuming all other factors remain
unchanged, the changes listed below would result in the following effects on our investment values:

Input
Hypothetical

Change
Industrial

Investment Values
Multifamily

Investment Values

Discount Rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.25% decrease +1.9 +1.8%
(weighted average) . . . . . . . . 0.25% increase (1.9%) (1.7%)

Exit Capitalization Rate . . . . . . . . 0.25% decrease +2.3% +2.8%
(weighted average) . . . . . . . . 0.25% increase (2.5%) (2.5%)

Experts

The following disclosure is added to the “Experts” section of our prospectus.

The amount of the estimated market values of our real properties as of July 31, 2018 presented on page 2 of this
Supplement under the section “July 31, 2018 NAV Per Share” has been reviewed by RERC, LLC, an
independent valuation firm, and is included in this Supplement given the authority of such firm as experts in
property valuations and appraisals. RERC, LLC will not calculate or be responsible for our NAV per share for
any class of our shares.

The audited historical financial statement of Defoor Hills for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the audited
historical financial statement of Tacara for the year ended December 31, 2017 included in this Supplement have
been so included in reliance on the reports of Marcum LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm,
given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

Quarterly Report for the Period Ended June 30, 2018

On August 14, 2018, we filed with the SEC our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30,
2018, a copy of which is attached to this Supplement as Appendix A (without exhibits).

Financial Statements for Defoor Hills and Tacara

Attached to this Supplement as Appendix B are certain financial statements related to our Defoor Hills and
Tacara properties.
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Appendix A

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q



UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)
È QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE

SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2018

OR

‘ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 333-222231

nuveen
Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its Charter)

Maryland 82-1419222
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)
(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)

730 Third Avenue, 3rd Floor
New York, NY 10017

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (212) 490-9000

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes È No ‘

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter)
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such
files). Yes È No ‘

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, smaller
reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,”
“smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ‘ Accelerated filer ‘

Non-accelerated filer È (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company ‘

Emerging growth company È

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period
for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange
Act. È

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act). YES ‘ NO È

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the Registrant: No
established market exists for the registrant’s common stock.

As of August 14, 2018, there were 25,641 outstanding shares of Class D common stock, 108,213 outstanding shares of
Class I common stock and 23,923,209 outstanding shares of Class N common stock. There were no outstanding shares of
Class T or Class S common stock.
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ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

June 30,
2018

(unaudited)
December 31,

2017

Assets
Investments in real estate, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $189,361 $114,822
Investments in real estate-related securities, at fair value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,831 —
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,923 3,681
Restricted cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26 —
Intangible assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,927 7,305
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 636 92

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $228,704 $125,900

Liabilities and Equity
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,061 $ 1,728
Due to affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,311 —
Intangible liabilities, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 219 250

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,591 $ 1,978

Equity
Common stock – Class D Shares, $0.01 par value per share, 500,000,000 shares

authorized, 25,641 and no shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, respectively. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (a) —

Common stock – Class I Shares, $0.01 par value per share, 500,000,000 shares
authorized, 59,288 and no shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, respectively. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 —

Common stock – Class N shares, $0.01 par value per share, 100,000,000 shares
authorized, 22,465,483 and 12,425,000 shares issued and outstanding at June 30,
2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 225 124

Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 222,443 124,126
Accumulated deficit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,556) (328)

Total equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 221,113 123,922

Total liabilities and equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $228,704 $125,900

(a) The Class D Shares amount is not presented due to rounding; see Note 11.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Three Months
Ended

June 30, 2018

Six Months
Ended

June 30, 2018

May 19, 2017
(date of initial
capitalization)

through
June 30, 2017

Revenues
Rental revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,487 $ 4,755 $—
Tenant reimbursement income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 526 1,080 —
Other revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2 —

Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,015 5,837 —
Expenses
Rental property operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,138 2,104 —
General and administrative expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,231 2,922 —
Advisory fee due to affiliate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 346 641 —
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,856 3,629 —

Total expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,571 9,296 —
Other income
Realized and unrealized income from real estate-related securities . . 1,782 2,170 —
Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61 61 —

Total other income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,843 2,231 —
Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 287 $ (1,228) $—

Net income (loss) per share of common stock – basic and diluted . . . $ 0.01 $ (0.06) $—

Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding, basic
and diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,842,221 19,537,360 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Unaudited)

(in thousands, except share data)

Par Value

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Total
Equity

Common
Stock

Class D

Common
Stock

Class I

Common
Stock

Class N

Balance at January 1, 2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . $— $— $124 $124,126 $ (328) $123,922
Issuance of 10,125,412 shares of Common

Stock (net of $3,220 of offering costs) . . . — (a) 1 101 98,289 — 98,391
Amortization of restricted stock grants . . . . . — — — 28 — 28
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — (1,228) (1,228)

Balance at June 30, 2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $— $ 1 $225 $222,443 $(1,556) $221,113

(a) The Class D Shares amount is not presented due to rounding; see Note 11.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

(in thousands)

Six Months
Ended

June 30, 2018

May 19, 2017
(date of initial
capitalization)

through
June 30, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (1,228) $—
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating

activities:
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,629 —
Unrealized gain on changes in fair value of real estate-related securities . . (1,852) —
Realized gain on sale of real estate-related securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (7)
Straight line rent adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (177) —
Amortization of below-market lease intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (31) —
Amortization of restricted stock grants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28 —

Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase in other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (367) —
Increase in due to affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,091 —
Increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other liabilities . . . . . 662 —

Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,748 —

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions of real estate properties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (81,056) —
Capital improvements to real estate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (63) —
Purchase of real estate-related securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (21,809) —
Proceeds from sale of real estate-related securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,837

Net cash used in investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (101,091) —

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101,611 —

Net cash provided by financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101,611 —

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash during the
period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,268 —

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,681 $200

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5,949 $200

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash to the
consolidated balance sheet, end of period:

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5,923 $200
Restricted cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26 —

Total cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5,949 $200

Non-cash investing activities:
Assumption of liabilities in conjunction with acquisitions of real estate . . . $ 661 $—

Accrued offering costs due to affiliate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,197 $—

Accrued capital expenditures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 10 $—

Non-cash financing activities:
Accrued stockholder servicing fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 23 $—

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Note 1. Organization and Business Purpose

Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc. (the “Company”) was formed on May 1, 2017 as a Maryland corporation and
intends to elect to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) for U.S. federal income tax purposes
commencing with its taxable year ending December 31, 2018. The Company’s sponsor is Nuveen, LLC (the
“Sponsor”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America (“TIAA”).
The Company is the sole general partner of Nuveen Global Cities REIT OP, LP, a Delaware limited partnership
(“Nuveen OP”). Nuveen OP has issued a limited partner interest to Nuveen Global Cities REIT LP, LLC (the
“Limited Partner”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company was organized to invest primarily
in stabilized income-oriented commercial real estate in the United States and that a substantial but lesser portion
of the Company’s portfolio will include real properties located in Canada, Europe and the Asia-Pacific region.
Substantially all of the Company’s business will be conducted through Nuveen OP. The Company and Nuveen
OP are externally managed by TH Real Estate Global Cities Advisors, LLC (the “Advisor”), an indirect, wholly
owned subsidiary of the Sponsor.

Pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-11, the Company has registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) an offering of up to $5 billion in shares of common stock, consisting of up to $4 billion
in shares in its primary offering and up to $1 billion in shares pursuant to its distribution reinvestment plan (the
“Offering”). The registration statement was declared effective on January 31, 2018. The Company is publicly
selling any combination of four classes of shares of its common stock, Class D shares, Class S shares, Class T
shares and Class I shares, with a dollar value up to the maximum offering amount. The publicly offered share
classes have different upfront selling commissions and ongoing stockholder servicing fees. The purchase price
per share for each class of common stock in the Offering varies and will generally equal the Company’s prior
month’s net asset value (“NAV”) per share, as calculated monthly, plus applicable upfront selling commissions
and dealer manager fees.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries, and in the opinion of management, include all necessary adjustments, consisting of only normal and
recurring items, necessary for a fair statement of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements as of
June 30, 2018 and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 are unaudited and include all
adjustments necessary to present a fair statement of results for the interim periods presented. Results of
operations for the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results for the entire year. These financial
statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and the applicable rules and
regulations of the SEC. Accordingly, they do not include all information and footnotes required by GAAP for
complete financial statements. Certain footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in
accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted from this report pursuant to the rules of the SEC. The
accompanying unaudited consolidated interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP, and the related notes thereto, that are
included in the Company’s Special Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 as filed
with the SEC. The year-end balance sheet was derived from those audited financial statements.

All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The preparation of the
financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumption that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the balance sheet. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Investments in Real Estate

In accordance with the guidance for business combinations, the Company determines whether the acquisition of a
property qualifies as a business combination, which requires that the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
constitute a business. If the property acquired is not a business, the Company accounts for the transaction as an
asset acquisition.

Whether the acquisition of a property acquired is considered a business combination or asset acquisition, the
Company recognizes the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity. In addition, for transactions that are business combinations, the Company evaluates the
existence of goodwill or a gain from a bargain purchase. The Company expenses acquisition-related costs
associated with business combinations as they are incurred. The Company capitalizes acquisition-related costs
associated with asset acquisition.

Upon acquisition of a property, the Company assesses the fair value of acquired tangible and intangible assets
(including land, buildings, tenant improvements, above-market and below-market leases, acquired in-place
leases, other identified intangible assets and assumed liabilities) and allocates the purchase price to the acquired
assets and assumed liabilities. The Company assesses and considers fair value based on estimated cash flow
projections that utilize discount and/or capitalization rates that it deems appropriate, as well as other available
market information. Estimates of future cash flows are based on a number of factors including the historical
operating results, known and anticipated trends, and market and economic conditions.

The fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property considers the value of the property as if it were
vacant. The Company also considers an allocation of purchase price of other acquired intangibles, including
acquired in-place leases that may have a customer relationship intangible value, including but not limited to the
nature and extent of the existing relationship with the tenants, the tenants’ credit quality and expectations of lease
renewals. Based on its acquisitions to date, the Company’s allocation to customer relationship intangible assets
has not been material.

The Company records acquired above-market and below-market leases at their fair values (using a discount rate
which reflects the risks associated with the leases acquired) equal to the difference between (1) the contractual
amounts to be paid pursuant to each in-place lease and (2) management’s estimate of fair market lease rates for
each corresponding in-place lease, measured over a period equal to the remaining term of the lease for above-
market leases and the initial term plus the term of any below-market fixed rate renewal options for below-market
leases. Other intangible assets acquired include amounts for in-place lease values that are based on the
Company’s evaluation of the specific characteristics of each tenant’s lease. Factors to be considered include
estimates of carrying costs during hypothetical expected lease-up periods considering current market conditions,
and costs to execute similar leases. In estimating carrying costs, the Company includes real estate taxes,
insurance and other operating expenses and estimates of lost rentals at market rates during the expected lease-up
periods, depending on local market conditions. In estimating costs to execute similar leases, the Company
considers leasing commissions, legal and other related expenses.

The amortization of acquired below-market leases is recorded as an adjustment to rental revenue on the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. The amortization of in-place leases is recorded as an
adjustment to depreciation and amortization expense on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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The cost of buildings and improvements includes the purchase price of the Company’s properties and any
acquisition-related costs, along with any subsequent improvements to such properties. The Company’s
investments in real estate are stated at cost and are generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Description Depreciable Life

Building and building improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40 years
Land improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3-7 years
Lease intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Over lease term

Significant improvements to properties are capitalized. When assets are sold or retired, their costs and related
accumulated depreciation or amortization are removed from the accounts with the resulting gains or losses
reflected in net income or loss for the period.

Repairs and maintenance are expensed to operations as incurred and are included in rental property operating
expense on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The Company’s management reviews its real estate properties for impairment each quarter or when there is an
event or change in circumstances that indicates an impaired value. If the carrying amount of the real estate
investment is no longer recoverable and exceeds the fair value such investment, an impairment loss is
recognized. The impairment loss is recognized based on the excess of the carrying amount of the asset over its
fair value, or fair value, less cost to sell if classified as held for sale. If the Company’s strategy changes or market
conditions otherwise dictate an earlier sale date, an impairment loss may be recognized and such loss could be
material to the Company’s results. If the Company determines that an impairment has occurred, the affected
assets must be reduced to their fair value or fair value, less cost to sell if classified as held for sale. During the
period presented, no such impairment occurred.

Investments in Real Estate-Related Securities

The Company has elected to classify its investment in real estate-related securities as trading securities and carry
such investments at estimated fair value. Dividend income is recorded when declared. The resulting dividend
income and gains and losses are recorded as a component of realized and unrealized income from real estate-
related securities on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Accounting guidance also establishes a fair
value hierarchy that requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to
measure fair value:

Level 1 – quoted prices are available in active markets for identical investments as of the measurement date. The
Company does not adjust the quoted price for these investments.

Level 2 – quoted prices are available in markets that are not active or model inputs are based on inputs that are
either directly or indirectly observable as of the measurement date.

Level 3 – pricing inputs are unobservable and include instances where there is minimal, if any, market activity
for the investment.
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These inputs require significant judgment or estimation by management or third parties when determining fair
value and generally represent anything that does not meet the criteria of Levels 1 and 2. Due to the inherent
uncertainty of these estimates, these values may differ materially from the values that would have been used had
a ready market for these investments existed.

The carrying amounts of financial instruments such as other assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturities and market rates of interest of these
instruments.

As of June 30, 2018, the Company’s $21.8 million of investments in real-estate related securities consisted of
shares of common stock of publicly-traded real estate investment trusts and were classified as Level 1. These
investments are recorded at fair value based on the closing price of the common stock as reported by national
securities exchanges.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s sources of revenue arising from leasing arrangements and the related revenue recognition
policies are as follows:

Rental revenue – primarily consists of base rent arising from tenant operating leases at the Company’s office,
industrial, multifamily, and retail properties. Rental revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of
the lease, including any rent steps or abatement provisions. The Company begins to recognize revenue when a
tenant takes possession of the leased space.

Tenant reimbursement income – consists primarily of amounts due from tenants for costs related to common area
maintenance, real estate taxes, and other recoverable costs included in lease agreements. The Company
recognizes the reimbursement of such costs incurred as tenant reimbursement income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represents cash held in banks, cash on hand and liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. The Company may have bank balances in excess of
federally insured amounts; however, the Company deposits its cash with high credit-quality institutions to
minimize credit risk.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash primarily consists of cash received for security deposits required to be maintained in separate
bank accounts. The amount of $25,712 is classified as restricted cash as of June 30, 2018.

Income Taxes

The Company intends to make an election to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal
Revenue Code commencing with its taxable year ending December 31, 2018. If the Company qualifies for
taxation as a REIT, the Company generally will not be subject to federal corporate income tax to the extent it
distributes 90% of its taxable income to its stockholders. REITs are subject to a number of other organizational
and operational requirements. Even if the Company qualifies for taxation as a REIT, it may be subject to certain
state and local taxes on its income and property, and federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed income.
The Company may elect to treat certain of its corporate subsidiaries as taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRSs”).
There were no active TRSs since May 19, 2017 (date of initial capitalization) through June 30, 2018. In general,
a TRS may perform additional services for the Company’s tenants and generally may engage in any real estate or
non-real estate-related business other than management or operation of a lodging facility or a health care facility.
A domestic TRS is subject to corporate federal income tax.
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Tax legislation commonly referred to as the Tax Cuts & Jobs Act (the “TCJA”) was enacted on December 22,
2017. Among other things, the TCJA reduces the U.S. federal corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21% and
creates new taxes on certain foreign-sourced earnings. Management has evaluated the effects of TCJA and
concluded that the TCJA will not materially impact its consolidated financial statements. This is due to the fact
that the Company is operating in a manner which will allow it to qualify as a REIT which will result in a full
valuation allowance being recorded against its deferred tax balances. The Company also estimates that the new
taxes on foreign-sourced earnings are not likely to apply to its foreign investments.

On December 22, 2017, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118”), which provides
guidance on accounting for the tax effects of the TCJA. SAB 118 provides a measurement period that should not
extend beyond one year from the TCJA enactment date for companies to complete the accounting under
ASC 740, Income Taxes. Though the Company believes that the impacts of the TCJA will be immaterial to its
financial results, the Company continues to analyze certain aspects of the TCJA, therefore its estimates may
change as additional information becomes available. Many of the provisions of the TCJA will require guidance
through the issuance of Treasury regulations in order to assess their effect. There may be a substantial delay
before such regulations are promulgated, increasing the uncertainty as to the ultimate effect of the statutory
amendments on the Company. It is also likely that there will be technical corrections legislation proposed with
respect to the TCJA this year, the effect of which cannot be predicted and may be adverse to the Company or its
stockholders.

The Company is a taxable subchapter C corporation for its initial tax year ending December 31, 2017. The
Company is indirectly wholly-owned by TIAA as of December 31, 2017 and will be included in TIAA’s
consolidated U.S. corporation income tax return for its initial tax year. In accordance with SEC Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 1B (“SAB1B”) in conjunction with ASC740, the Company has determined its income tax provision
on a separate return basis. The income tax provision as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 is zero.

Net Income (Loss) per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) for the period by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted income (loss) per share is computed by
dividing net income (loss) for the period by the weighted average number of common shares and common share
equivalents outstanding (unless their effect is anti-dilutive) for the period. There are no common share
equivalents outstanding, and accordingly, the weighted average number of common shares outstanding is
identical for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 for both basic and diluted shares.

Organization and Offering Expenses

Organization costs are expensed as incurred and recorded as a component of General and Administrative
Expenses on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and offering costs are charged to equity as
such amounts are incurred.

The Advisor has agreed to advance organization and offering expenses on behalf of the Company (including
legal, accounting, and other expenses attributable to the organization, but excluding upfront selling commissions,
dealer manager fees and stockholder servicing fees) through the fourth full fiscal quarter after the Company’s
acquisition of its first property. The Company reimburses the Advisor for all such advanced expenses ratably
over a 60 month period following December 31, 2018.

As of June 30, 2018, the Advisor and its affiliates had incurred organization and offering expenses on the
Company’s behalf of $4.3 million, consisting of offering costs of $3.2 million and organization costs of
$1.1 million. Such costs became the Company’s liability on January 31, 2018, the date as of which the Offering
was declared effective. These organization and offering costs are recorded as Due to Affiliates on the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2018.

12



Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Pending Adoption:

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) 2014-09 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606).” Beginning January 1, 2018, the
Company was required to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services and has included additional disclosure requirements. The majority of the Company’s revenue is derived
from tenant leases at multifamily and industrial properties and the Company has concluded that the adoption of
ASU 2014-09 did not have an impact on both the rental revenue and tenant reimbursement income revenue
streams. The Company has adopted this standard on January 1, 2018 using the modified retrospective method,
and the cumulative impact did not have an impact on equity. Accordingly, there are no differences between the
amounts as reported in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2018 and its Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to without the adoption of
ASU 2014-09. However, upon adoption of the new leasing standard, ASU 2014-09 may impact the presentation
of certain lease and non-lease components of revenue. See below for a further description of the expected impact
the new leasing standard may have on the Company.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 Leases (Topic 842) (“ASU 2016-02”) which will supersede
Topic 840, Leases. This ASU applies to all entities that enter into a lease. Lessees will be required to report
assets and liabilities that arise from leases. Lessor accounting is expected to remain unchanged except in certain
circumstances. The ASU also contains certain practical expedients, which the Company plans to elect.

The Company is electing the transition package of practical expedients permitted within the new standard, which
among other things, allows the Company to carryforward the historical lease classification.

In addition, the Company will elect the practical expedient not to separate lease and non-lease components
whereby both components are accounted for and recognized as lease components. Under ASC 842 as a lessor,
lease components will be recognized on a straight line basis, while non-lease components will be recognized in
accordance with the new revenue standard. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact the ASU will
have on its consolidated financial statements. The Company’s tenant reimbursement revenues generated from
common area and maintenance services that are provided to its tenants are considered a non-lease component that
must be separated, allocated based on the transaction price allocation guidance and accounted for according to
the new revenue standard.

In January 2018, the FASB issued a proposal for comment that would allow lessors to elect a similar practical
expedient by class of underlying assets to not separate non-lease components from the lease component. The
lessor’s practical expedient election would be limited to circumstances in which (i) the timing and pattern of
revenue recognition are the same for the non-lease component and the related lease component and (ii) the
combined single lease component would be classified as an operating lease. If the exposed practical expedient is
issued in its existing form, the Company expects to elect the practical expedient which would allow the Company
the ability to combine the lease and non-lease components if the underlying asset meets the two criteria above.
This ASU is effective for public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including
all interim periods within those fiscal years. The proposed changes were approved by the FASB in July 2018.
Management has completed its initial scoping for the adoption of the ASU 2016-02 and does not expect the
adoption of such guidance to materially impact the Company.

Recently Adopted:

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, “Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) – Classification of
Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments” (“ASU 2016-15”). ASU 2016-15 clarifies the presentation of certain
cash receipts and cash payments in the statement of cash flows. The primary updates include additions and
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clarifications of the classification of cash flows related to certain debt repayment activities, contingent
consideration payments related to business combinations, proceeds from insurance policies, distributions from
equity method investees, and cash flows related to securitized receivables. This update is effective for annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The ASU
requires retrospective application to all prior periods presented upon adoption. The Company adopted this
standard on January 1, 2018 with no material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and
related disclosures.

In November 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-18, “Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash”
(“ASU 2016-18”). The amendments in this ASU require that a statement of cash flows explain the change during
the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted
cash equivalents. Therefore, amounts generally described as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents should
be included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total
amounts shown on the statements of cash flows. GAAP currently does not include specific guidance on the cash
flow classification and presentation of changes in restricted cash. This update is effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The ASU requires
retrospective application to all prior periods presented upon adoption. The Company adopted this standard on
January 1, 2018 with no material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09 “Compensation – Stock Compensation (Topic 718) – Scope of
Modification Accounting,” which provides guidance about which changes to the terms or conditions of a share-
based payment award require an entity to apply modification accounting. The amendments in this update will be
applied prospectively to an award modified on or after the adoption date. This standard is effective for annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company adopted
this standard on January 1, 2018 with no material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
and related disclosures.

Note 3. Investments in Real Estate

Investments in real estate, net consisted of the following (in thousands):

June 30,
2018

December 31,
2017

Building and building improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $156,538 $ 94,545
Land and land improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31,414 18,558
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,239 1,842

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 191,191 114,945
Accumulated depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,830) (123)

Investments in real estate, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $189,361 $114,822

Depreciation expense was $0.9 million and $1.7 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018,
respectively.

In June 2018, the Company acquired interests in two real property investments, which were comprised of one
office and one multifamily property. These property acquisitions have been accounted for as asset acquisitions.
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The following table provides further details of the properties acquired during the period ended June 30, 2018 (in
thousands):

Property Name
Ownership

Interest

Number
of

Properties Location Sector
Acquisition

Date
Purchase

Price

Defoor Hills . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100% 1 Atlanta, GA Office June 2018 $33,808
Tacara at Steiner Ranch . . . . . . . . . . . 100% 1 Austin, TX Multifamily June 2018 47,909

2 $81,717

The following table summarizes the purchase price allocation for the properties acquired during the period ended
June 30, 2018 (in thousands):

Defoor Hills
Tacara at

Steiner Ranch Total

Building and building improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . $25,600 $36,320 $61,920
Land and land improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,471 8,385 12,856
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 1,397 1,397
In-place lease intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,965 1,807 3,772
Other intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,772 — 1,772

Total purchase price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $33,808 $47,909 $81,717

Note 4. Investments in Real Estate-Related Securities

As of June 30, 2018, the Company’s investments in real estate-related securities included shares of common
stock of publicly-traded real estate investment trusts. As described in Note 2, the Company records its
investments in real estate-related securities at fair value on its Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The following table summarizes the components of realized and unrealized income from real estate-related
securities during the three and six months ended June 30, 2018:

Three Months
Ended

June 30, 2018

Six Months
Ended

June 30, 2018

Unrealized gains . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,578 $1,852
Realized gains . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 7
Dividend income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 197 311

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,782 $2,170
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Note 5. Intangibles

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of the Company’s intangible assets and liabilities
consisted of the following (in thousands):

June 30,
2018

December 31,
2017

Intangible assets:
In-place lease intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 9,580 $5,808
Other intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,407 1,635

Total intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $12,987 $7,443

Accumulated amortization:
In-place lease intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,804) (130)
Other intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (256) (8)

Total accumulated amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,060) (138)

Intangible assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $10,927 $7,305

Intangible liabilities:
Below-market lease intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (250) $ (250)
Accumulated amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31 —

Intangible liabilities, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (219) $ (250)

Amortization expense relating to intangible assets was $1 million and $1.9 million for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2018, respectively. Income from the amortization of intangible liabilities was $15,000 and
$31,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, respectively.

The estimated future amortization on the Company’s intangibles for each of the next five years and thereafter is
as follows (in thousands):

In-place
Lease

Intangibles
Other

Intangibles

Below-
market
Lease

Intangibles

Remaining 2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,511 $ 327 $ (31)
2019 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,075 592 (48)
2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 877 509 (44)
2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 637 335 (34)
2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 430 282 (22)
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,246 1,106 (40)

$7,776 $3,151 $(219)

The weighted-average amortization periods for the acquired in-place lease intangibles, other intangibles and
below-market lease intangibles of the properties acquired were 4, 6 and 5 years, respectively.
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Note 6. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

The following table summarizes the components of other assets (in thousands):

June 30,
2018

December 31,
2017

Receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $241 $ 71
Straight-line rent receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 191 14
Prepaid expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 201 7
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 —

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $636 $ 92

The following table summarizes the components of accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other liabilities (in
thousands):

June 30,
2018

December 31,
2017

Real estate taxes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,155 $1,023
Accounts payable and accrued expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,381 388
Tenant security deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 254 239
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 271 78

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,061 $1,728

Note 7. Related Party Transactions

Fees Due to Related Party

Pursuant to the advisory agreement between the Company and the Advisor, the Advisor is responsible for
sourcing, evaluating and monitoring the Company’s investment opportunities and making decisions related to the
acquisition, management, financing and disposition of the Company’s assets, in accordance with the Company’s
investment objectives, guidelines, policies and limitations, subject to oversight by the Company’s board of
directors.

Certain affiliates of the Company, including the Advisor, will receive fees and compensation, payable monthly,
in connection with the offering and ongoing management of the assets of the Company, as follows:

Advisory Fee as a % of NAV

Class T shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.25%
Class S shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.25%
Class D shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.25%
Class I shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.25%
Class N shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.65%

The Company may retain certain of the Advisor’s affiliates for necessary services relating to the Company’s
investments or its operations, including construction, special servicing, leasing, development, property oversight
and other property management services, as well as services related to mortgage servicing, group purchasing,
healthcare, consulting/brokerage, capital markets/credit origination, loan servicing, property, title and other types
of insurance, management consulting and other similar operational matters. Any such arrangements will be at
market terms and rates. As of June 30, 2018, the Company has not retained an affiliate of the Advisor for any
such services.

In addition, Nuveen Securities, LLC (the “Dealer Manager”) serves as the dealer manager for the Offering. The
Dealer Manager is a registered broker-dealer affiliated with the Advisor. The Company’s obligations under the
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Dealer Manager Agreement to pay stockholder servicing fees with respect to the Class D, Class S and Class T
shares distributed in the Offering shall survive until such shares are no longer outstanding (including because
such shares converted into Class I shares). As of June 30, 2018, the Company has incurred $22,750 of
stockholder servicing fees with respect to the outstanding Class D common shares.

The following table presents the upfront selling commissions and dealer manager fees for each class of shares
sold in the Offering, and the stockholder servicing fee per annum based on the aggregate outstanding NAV:

Maximum Upfront
Selling Commissions as a % of

Transaction Price

Maximum Upfront
Dealer Manager Fees as a % of

Transaction Price
Stockholder Servicing

Fee as a % of NAV

Class T shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . up to 3.0% 0.50% 0.85%(1)

Class S shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . up to 3.5% None 0.85%
Class D shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . None None 0.25%
Class I shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . None None None

(1) Consists of an advisor stockholder servicing fee of 0.65% per annum and a dealer stockholder servicing fee
of 0.20% per annum (or other amounts, provided that the sum equals 0.85%), of the aggregate NAV of
outstanding Class T shares.

The Company will cease paying the stockholder servicing fee with respect to any Class T share, Class S share or
Class D share held in a stockholder’s account at the end of the month in which the Dealer Manager, in
conjunction with the transfer agent, determines that total upfront selling commissions, dealer manager fees and
stockholder servicing fees paid with respect to the shares held within such account would exceed, in the
aggregate, 8.75% of the sum of the gross proceeds from the sale of such shares and the aggregate gross proceeds
of any shares issued under the distribution reinvestment plan with respect thereto (or, solely with respect to the
Class T shares, a lower limit set forth in an agreement between the Dealer Manager and the applicable
participating broker-dealer in effect on the date that such shares were sold). At the end of such month, each
Class T share, Class S share and Class D share held in a stockholder’s account will convert into a number of
Class I shares (including any fractional shares) with an equivalent aggregate NAV as such share. The Company
accrues the cost of the stockholder servicing fee as an offering cost at the time each Class T, Class S and Class D
share is sold during the primary offering. There is not a stockholder servicing fee with respect to Class I shares.

If not already converted into Class I shares upon a determination that total upfront selling commissions, dealer
manager fees and stockholder servicing fees paid with respect to such shares would exceed the applicable limit as
described above, each Class T share, Class S share, Class D share and Class N share held in a stockholder’s
account will automatically and without any action on the part of the holder thereof convert into a number of
Class I shares (including any fractional shares) with an equivalent NAV as such share on the earliest of (i) a
listing of Class I shares, (ii) the Company’s merger or consolidation with or into another entity or the sale or
other disposition of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, in each case in a transaction in which
stockholders receive cash and/or listed securities or (iii) after termination of the primary portion of the offering in
which such Class T shares, Class S shares and Class D shares were sold, the end of the month in which the
Company, with the assistance of the dealer manager, determines that all underwriting compensation from all
sources in connection with the Offering, including upfront selling commissions, the stockholder servicing fee and
other underwriting compensation, is equal to 10% of the gross proceeds of the primary portion of the Offering. In
addition, immediately before any liquidation, dissolution or winding up, each Class T share, Class S share,
Class D share and Class N share will automatically convert into a number of Class I shares (including any
fractional shares) with an equivalent NAV as such share.

TIAA has agreed to purchase $300 million of shares of Class N common stock as follows: (i) prior to the
commencement of the Offering, an aggregate of 20,000,000 Class N common stock (including the initial
capitalization of $200,000) at a purchase price of $10.00 per share for a total value of $200 million; and
(ii) during the period commencing January 1, 2018 and ending two years from the commencement of the
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Offering: (1) $50 million in shares of Class N common stock during the month following the date when the
Company’s NAV (exclusive of cash and listed securities) exceeds $100 million, and (2) $50 million in shares of
Class N common stock during the month following the date when the Company’s NAV (exclusive of cash and
listed securities) exceeds $200 million, each at the then-current transaction price, which will generally be the
prior month’s NAV per share for Class N shares. As part of TIAA’s agreement to purchase these Class N shares,
the Advisor has agreed that, in the event that certain capital raising thresholds are not achieved in the Offering,
the Advisor will reimburse TIAA a portion of the advisory fees and organization and offering expenses charged
with respect to the Class N shares.

Due to Affiliates

The following table details the components of due to affiliates (in thousands):

June 30,
2018

December 31,
2017

Accrued stockholder servicing fees (a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 23 $—
Advanced organization and offering costs . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,288 —

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,311 $—

(a) The Company will accrue the full amount of future stockholder servicing fees payable to the dealer manager
for Class S, Class T and Class D shares up to the 8.75% of gross proceeds limit at the time such shares are
sold. As of June 30, 2018, the Company accrued $22,750 of stockholder servicing fees payable to the dealer
manager related to Class D shares sold. The dealer manager has entered into agreements with the selected
dealers distributing the Company’s shares in the Offering, which provide, amount other things, for the
re-allowance of the full amount of the selling commissions and the dealer manager fee and all or a portion
of stockholder servicing fees received by the dealer manager to such selected dealers. The Company will no
longer incur the shareholder servicing fee after June 30, 2053; the fees may end sooner if the total
underwriting compensation paid in respect of the Offering reaches 10.0% of the gross offering proceeds or if
the Company undertakes a liquidity event, as described in the prospectus, before that date. The Company is
currently accruing for this based on 35 years from June 30, 2018.

Note 8. Economic Dependency

The Company will be dependent on the Advisor and its affiliates for certain services that are essential to it,
including the sale of the Company’s shares of common stock, acquisition and disposition decisions, and certain
other responsibilities. In the event that the Advisor and its affiliates are unable to provide such services, the
Company would be required to find alternative service providers.

Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may be involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary
course of business. As of June 30, 2018, the Company was not involved in any material legal proceedings. In the
normal course of business the Advisor, on behalf of the Company, enters into contracts that contain a variety of
representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The Company’s maximum exposure
under these arrangements is unknown as this would involve future claims that may be made against the Company
that have not yet occurred. However, based on experience, the Advisor expects the risk of loss to be remote.

On December 22, 2017, the Company entered into a subscription agreement to invest approximately $30 million
(€25 million) into the European Cities Partnership SCSp, which along with the Advisor, is an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of TIAA. As of June 30, 2018, the Company had not yet funded any portion of this investment.
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Note 10. Tenant Leases

The following table presents the future minimum rents the Company expects to receive for its industrial
properties, excluding tenant reimbursements of operating expenses (in thousands). Leases at the Company’s
multifamily and office investments are short term, generally 12 months or less, and are therefore not included.

Year

Future
Minimum

Rent

Remaining 2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,307
2019 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,518
2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,223
2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,390
2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,823
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,980

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $38,241

Note 11. Equity

Authorized Capital

On January 24, 2018, the Company filed Articles of Amendment and Restatement with the State Department of
Assessments and Taxation of Maryland and the Company’s undesignated common stock became Class N shares
of common stock and the Class D, Class S, Class T and Class I shares sold in the Offering were authorized.

As of June 30, 2018, the Company had authority to issue a total of 2,200,000,000 shares of capital stock. Of the
total shares of stock authorized, 2,100,000,000 shares are classified as common stock with a par value of $0.01
per share, 500,000,000 of which are classified as Class T shares, 500,000,000 of which are classified as Class S
shares, 500,000,000 of which are classified as Class D shares, 500,000,000 of which are classified as Class I
shares, 100,000,000 of which are classified as Class N shares, and 100,000,000 are classified as preferred stock
with a par value of $0.01 per share.

In addition, the Company’s board of directors may amend the charter from time to time, without stockholder
approval, to increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares of stock or the number of shares of stock of any
class or series that the Company has authority to issue, or to issue additional classes of stock which may be
subject to various class-specific fees.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had the authority to issue a total of 100,000,000 shares of common stock
with a par value of $0.01 per share.

Preferred Stock

As of June 30, 2018, the Company has not sold any preferred stock.

Common Stock

As of June 30, 2018, the Company has issued and outstanding 25,641 shares of Class D common stock, 59,288
shares of Class I common stock, and 22,465,483 shares of Class N common stock. As of June 30, 2018, the
Company has not sold any Class T shares or Class S shares.

On May 1, 2018, members of the Company’s board of directors purchased $600,000 of common stock (59,288
Class I shares) at a purchase price of $10.12 per share.
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On June 1, 2018, the Company sold $260,000 of common stock (25,641 Class D shares) at a purchase price of
$10.14 per share.

On January 22, 2018, TIAA purchased $75.8 million of common stock (7,575,000 Class N shares) at a purchase
price of $10.00 per share. On June 1, 2018, TIAA purchased $25 million of common stock (2,465,483 Class N
shares) at a purchase price of $10.14 per share. In addition, during the period commencing January 1, 2018 and
ending January 31, 2020, TIAA has agreed to purchase upon the Company’s request: (1) $50 million in shares of
Class N common stock following the date when the Company’s NAV (exclusive of cash and listed securities)
exceeds $100 million, and (2) $50 million in shares of Class N common stock following the date when the
Company’s NAV (exclusive of cash and listed securities) exceeds $200 million, in each case at the then-current
transaction price which will generally be the prior month’s NAV per share for Class N shares. As part of TIAA’s
agreement to purchase these Class N shares, the Advisor has agreed that, in the event that certain capital raising
thresholds are not achieved in the Offering, the Advisor will reimburse TIAA a portion of the advisory fees and
organization and offering expenses charged with respect to the Class N shares. TIAA makes its investments in
Class N shares through a wholly owned subsidiary.

The Class N shares purchased by TIAA described above (excluding the initial capitalization which must be held
for so long as the Advisor or its affiliate remains the advisor) shall be subject to the following limitations on
repurchase:

• (i) TIAA may submit up to 4,980,000 Class N shares for repurchase upon the earlier of (1) the date that
the Company’s NAV reaches $1 billion, and (2) two years from the commencement of the Offering;
and (ii) TIAA may submit all of its remaining Class N shares for repurchase beginning on the fifth
anniversary of the commencement of the Offering.

• The total amount of repurchases of Class N shares eligible for repurchase will be limited to no more
than 0.67% of aggregate NAV per month and no more than 1.67% of the Company’s aggregate NAV
per calendar quarter; provided that, if in any month or quarter the total amount of aggregate
repurchases of all classes of common stock do not reach the overall share repurchase plan limits of 2%
of the aggregate NAV per month and 5% of the aggregate NAV per calendar quarter, the above
repurchase limits on the Class N shares shall not apply to that month or quarter and TIAA shall be
entitled to submit shares for repurchase up to the overall share repurchase plan limits.

Restricted Stock Grants

The Company’s non-employee directors who are not affiliated with the Advisor or the Company are
compensated with an annual fee, of which 25% is made in the form of an annual grant of restricted stock based
on the most recent transaction price. The restricted stock generally vests one year from the date of grant, which,
in connection with the directors’ first annual grant, is January 23, 2019. The Company accrued approximately
$17,000 and $28,000 of expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, respectively, in connection
with restricted stock portion of director compensation, which is included in accounts payable, accrued expenses
and other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Distribution Reinvestment Plan

The Company has adopted a distribution reinvestment plan whereby holders of Class T, Class S, Class D and
Class I shares (other than investors in certain states or who are clients of a participating broker-dealer that does
not permit automatic enrollment in the distribution reinvestment plan) have their cash distributions automatically
reinvested in additional shares of common stock unless they elect to receive their distributions in cash. Holders of
Class N shares are not eligible to participate in the distribution reinvestment plan and will receive their
distributions in cash. Investors who are clients of a participating broker-dealer that does not permit automatic
enrollment in the distribution reinvestment plan or are residents of those states that do not allow automatic
enrollment will receive their distributions in cash unless they elect to have their cash distributions reinvested in
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additional shares of the Company’s common stock. The per share purchase price for shares purchased pursuant to
the distribution reinvestment plan will be equal to the transaction price at the time the distribution is payable,
which will generally be equal to the Company’s prior month’s NAV per share for that share class. Stockholders
do not pay upfront selling commissions or dealer manager fees when purchasing shares pursuant to the
distribution reinvestment plan. The stockholder servicing fees with respect to shares of the Company’s Class T
shares, Class S shares and Class D shares are calculated based on the NAV for those shares and may reduce the
NAV or, alternatively, the distributions payable with respect to shares of each such class, including shares issued
in respect of distributions on such shares under the distribution reinvestment plan.

Share Repurchases

The Company has adopted a share repurchase plan, whereby on a monthly basis, stockholders may request that
the Company repurchase all or any portion of their shares. The Company may choose to repurchase all, some or
none of the shares that have been requested to be repurchased at the end of any particular month, in its discretion,
subject to any limitations in the share repurchase plan. The total amount of aggregate repurchases of Class D,
Class S, Class T, and Class I shares will be limited to 2% of the aggregate NAV per month and 5% of the
aggregate NAV per calendar quarter. Shares would be repurchased at a price equal to the transaction price on the
applicable repurchase date, subject to any early repurchase deduction. Shares that have not been outstanding for
at least one year would be repurchased at 95% of the transaction price. Due to the illiquid nature of investments
in real estate, the Company may not have sufficient liquid resources to fund repurchase requests and has
established limitations on the amount of funds the Company may use for repurchases during any calendar month
and quarter. Further, the Company’s board of directors may modify, suspend or terminate the share repurchase
plan.

Note 12. Segment Reporting

The Company currently operates in four reportable segments: multifamily properties, office properties, industrial
properties and real estate-related securities. These are operating segments that are defined as components of an
enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief
operating decision-makers in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company’s
chief executive officer, chief financial officer and head of portfolio management have been identified as the chief
operating decision-makers. The Company’s chief operating decision-makers direct the allocation of resources to
operating segments based on the profitability and cash flows of each respective segment. The Company believes
that Segment Net Operating Income is the performance metric that captures the unique operating characteristics
of each segment.

The following table sets forth the total assets by segment as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 (in
thousands):

June 30,
2018

December 31,
2017

Multifamily . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $100,419 $ 54,074
Industrial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66,539 68,145
Office . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,847 —
Real Estate-Related Securities . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,831 —
Other (Corporate) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,068 3,681

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $228,704 $125,900
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The following table sets forth the financial results by segment for the three months ended June 30, 2018 (in
thousands):

Multifamily Office Industrial

Real Estate-
Related

Securities Total

Revenues:
Rental revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,335 $ 98 $1,054 $ — $ 2,487
Tenant reimbursement income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31 19 476 — 526
Other revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 — — — 2

Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,368 117 1,530 — 3,015
Expenses:
Rental property operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 627 27 484 — 1,138

Total expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 627 27 484 — 1,138

Realized and unrealized income from real estate-related
securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 1,782 1,782

Segment net operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 741 $ 90 $1,046 $1,782 $ 3,659

Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (890) $ (49) $ (917) $ — $(1,856)
General and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,231)
Advisory fee due to affiliate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (346)
Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 287

The following table sets forth the financial results by segment for the six months ended June 30, 2018 (in
thousands):

Multifamily Office Industrial

Real Estate-
Related

Securities Total

Revenues:
Rental revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,555 $ 98 $ 2,102 $ — $ 4,755
Tenant reimbursement income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 106 19 955 — 1,080
Other revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 — — — 2

Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,663 117 3,057 — 5,837
Expenses:
Rental property operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,207 27 870 — 2,104

Total expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,207 27 870 — 2,104

Realized and unrealized income from real estate-related
securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 2,170 2,170

Segment net operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,456 $ 90 $ 2,187 $2,170 $ 5,903

Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(1,741) $ (49) $(1,839) $ — $(3,629)
General and administrative expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,922)
Advisory fee due to affiliate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (641)
Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61

Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(1,228)
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Note 13. Subsequent Events

On July 18, 2018, the Company contributed $3 million (€2.6 million) in connection with its commitment to
invest into the European Cities Partnership CSCp. The Company’s remaining unfunded capital commitment is
approximately $27 million (€22.4 million).

On July 1, 2018 and August 1, 2018, the Company issued $200,000 (19,685 Class I shares) and $300,000 (29,240
Class I shares) of common stock at a purchase price of $10.16 and $10.26 per share, respectively to unaffiliated
parties.

On August 1, 2018, TIAA, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, purchased $15 million of common stock
(1,457,726 Class N shares) at a purchase price of $10.29 per share. TIAA has purchased an aggregate of
$240 million in our Class N common stock as part of TIAA’s commitment to purchase $300 million in shares of
our Class N common stock.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

References herein to “Company,” “we,” “us,” or “our” refer to Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc. and its
subsidiaries unless the context specifically requires otherwise.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the unaudited consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements about our business, operations and
financial performance, including, in particular, statements about our plans, strategies and objectives. You can
generally identify forward-looking statements by our use of forward-looking terminology such as “may,” “will,”
“expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “believe,” “continue” or other similar words. These statements
include our plans and objectives for future operations, including plans and objectives relating to future growth
and availability of funds, and are based on current expectations that involve numerous risks, uncertainties and
assumptions. Assumptions relating to these statements involve judgments with respect to, among other things,
future economic, competitive and market conditions and future business decisions, all of which are difficult or
impossible to accurately predict and many of which are beyond our control. Although we believe the assumptions
underlying the forward-looking statements, and the forward-looking statements themselves, are reasonable, any
of the assumptions could be inaccurate and, therefore, there can be no assurance that these forward-looking
statements will prove to be accurate and our actual results, performance and achievements may be materially
different from that expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors,
including but not limited to those discussed under “Risk Factors” in our Registration Statement on Form S-11
and amendments thereto, in our Special Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, and
elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in these
forward-looking statements, the inclusion of this information should not be regarded as a representation by us or
any other person that our objectives and plans, which we consider to be reasonable, will be achieved. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q is filed with the SEC. Except as required by law, we do not undertake to update
or revise any forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Overview

Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc. is a Maryland corporation formed on May 1, 2017. We were formed to invest in
properties in or around certain global cities selected for their resilience, long-term structural performance and
ability to deliver an attractive and stable distribution yield. We expect that a majority of our real estate
investments will be located in the United States and that a substantial but lesser portion of our portfolio will
include real properties located in Canada, Europe and the Asia-Pacific region. We will seek to complement our
real property investments by investing a smaller portion of our portfolio in real estate-related assets. We are
externally managed by our advisor, TH Real Estate Global Cities Advisors, LLC (“TH Real Estate Global Cities
Advisors” or the “Advisor”), an investment advisory affiliate of TH Real Estate. TH Real Estate is the real estate
investment management division of our sponsor, Nuveen, LLC (together with its affiliates, “Nuveen” or the
“Sponsor”). Nuveen is the asset management arm and wholly owned subsidiary of Teachers Insurance and
Annuity Association of America (“TIAA”). We intend to elect to be taxed as a real estate investment trust
(“REIT”) for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Initial Public Offering

On January 31, 2018, our Registration Statement on Form S-11 was declared effective by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). We have registered with the SEC an offering of up to $5 billion in shares of
common stock (the “Offering”), consisting of up to $4 billion in shares in our primary offering and up to
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$1 billion in shares pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan. We intend to publicly sell any combination of
four classes of shares of our common stock, Class D shares, Class S shares, Class T shares and Class I shares,
with a dollar value up to the maximum offering amount. The publicly offered share classes have different upfront
selling commissions and ongoing stockholder servicing fees. The purchase price per share for each class of
common stock in the Offering will vary and will generally equal our prior month’s NAV per share, as calculated
monthly, plus applicable upfront selling commissions and dealer manager fees.

TIAA invested $200,000 through the purchase of 20,000 shares of common stock at $10.00 per share as our
initial capitalization. Subsequent to our initial capitalization, TIAA has purchased $225 million in shares of
Class N common stock (less the $200,000 initial capitalization amount). Of the $225 million, $124.2 million was
purchased by TIAA through December 31, 2017 at $10.00 per share, $75.8 million was purchased on January 22,
2018 at $10.00 per share and $25 million was purchased on June 1, 2018 at $10.14 per share. TIAA has also
agreed to purchase upon our request during the period commencing January 1, 2018 and ending two years from
the commencement of the Offering: (1) $50 million in shares of Class N common stock following the date when
our net asset value (“NAV”) (exclusive of cash and listed securities) exceeds $100 million, and (2) $50 million in
shares of Class N common stock following the date when our NAV (exclusive of cash and listed securities)
exceeds $200 million, each at the then-current transaction price, which will generally be the prior month’s NAV
per share for Class N shares. Class N shares are not available for purchase in the Offering.

On May 1, 2018, members of the Company’s board of directors purchased $600,000 of common stock (59,288
Class I shares) at a purchase price of $10.12 per share.

On June 1, 2018, the Company sold $260,000 of common stock (25,641 Class D shares) at a purchase price of
$10.14 per share.

Investment Objectives

Our investment objectives are to:

• provide regular, stable cash distributions;

• target institutional quality, stabilized commercial real estate to achieve an attractive distribution yield;

• preserve and protect stockholders’ invested capital;

• realize appreciation from proactive investment management and asset management; and

• seek diversification by investing across leading global cities and across real estate sectors including
office, industrial, multifamily and retail.

We cannot assure you that we will achieve our investment objectives.
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Summary of Portfolio

The following charts provide information on the nature and geographical locations of our real properties as of
June 30, 2018:

Sector and
Property/Portfolio Name

Number
of

Properties Location
Acquisition

Date
Ownership

Interest

Acquisition
Price

(in thousands)(1)

Sq Feet
(in thousands)/

# of units Occupancy

Multifamily:
Kirkland Crossing . . . . . . . . 1 Aurora, IL Dec, 2017 100% $ 54,218 266 units 93%

Tacara at Steiner Ranch . . . 1 Austin, TX June, 2018 100% 47,909 246 units 96%

Total Multifamily . . . . . . . 2 $102,127 512 units 93%
Industrial:
West Phoenix Industrial . . . 1 Phoenix, AZ Dec, 2017 100% $ 16,785 265 sq. ft 100%
Denver Industrial . . . . . . . .

3
Golden &

Denver, CO Dec, 2017 100% 51,135 486 sq. ft 100%

Total Industrial . . . . . . . . . 4 $ 67,920 751 sq. ft 100%
Office:
Defoor Hills . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 Atlanta, GA June, 2018 100% $ 33,808 91 sq. ft 100%

Total Office . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 $ 33,808 91 sq. ft 100%

Total Investment
Properties . . . . . . . . . . . 7 $203,855

(1) Purchase price is inclusive of acquisition-related adjustments.

Property Type Percentage (*) Geography Percentage (*)

Multifamily . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50% West . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33%
Industrial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33% Midwest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27%
Office . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17% South . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40%

Total: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100% Total: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100%

(*) Percentage is based upon the market value of the real properties.

Kirkland Crossing

On December 8, 2017, we acquired the Kirkland Crossing Apartments (“Kirkland Crossing”), a multifamily
property from an unaffiliated third party for approximately $54 million, exclusive of acquisition adjustments.
Constructed in 2003, Kirkland Crossing consists of 266 units with a mix of one-, two- and three-bedroom units,
and is located in Aurora, Illinois, a suburb of Chicago. In-place rents at Kirkland Crossing are approximately
$1,588 per unit. Consistent with most multifamily apartment properties, Kirkland Crossing has lease terms that
are generally one year.

West Phoenix Industrial

On December 21, 2017, we acquired West Phoenix Industrial from an unaffiliated third party for a gross
purchase price of approximately $17 million, exclusive of acquisition adjustments. Constructed in 1998, West
Phoenix Industrial is an industrial warehouse/distribution building totaling 264,981 square feet, and is located in
Phoenix’s Southwest submarket. West Phoenix Industrial was 100% leased to two tenants with a weighted
average remaining lease term of three years at a weighted average rent of $3.82 per square foot per year.
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Denver Industrial Portfolio

On December 28, 2017, we acquired a fee simple interest in an approximately 486,000 square foot three-property
industrial portfolio located in the Central and West submarkets of Denver, Colorado (the “Denver Industrial
Portfolio”). The portfolio was acquired from an unaffiliated third party for approximately $51 million, excluding
acquisition adjustments. The Denver Industrial Portfolio is 100% leased to 20 tenants. The portfolio is comprised
of one Class-A, 261,825 square foot bulk distribution warehouse that is leased to two tenants, one 71,193 square
foot urban small-bay warehouse that is leased to three tenants, and one 152,966 square foot urban infill property
that is comprised of three buildings and leased to 15 tenants. The remaining weighted average lease term across
the portfolio is 3.3 years.

Defoor Hills

On June 15, 2018, we acquired Defoor Hills, an office property from an unaffiliated third party for approximately
$35 million, exclusive of acquisition adjustments. Defoor Hills is a 90,820 square foot adaptive reuse/creative
office project built in 1970 and redeveloped in 2017. Defoor Hills is 100% leased to three tenants with a
weighted average lease term of 11 years at a weighted average rent of $21.52 per square foot per year. Defoor
Hills is located in the West Midtown submarket of Atlanta, Georgia.

Tacara at Steiner Ranch

On June 25, 2018, we acquired Tacara at Steiner Ranch (“Tacara”), a multifamily property located in Austin, TX,
from an unaffiliated third party for approximately $48 million, excluding acquisition adjustments. Constructed in
2017, Tacara is approximately 235,808 square feet and consists of 246 units with a mix of one-, two- and three-
bedroom units. As of December 31, 2017, weighted average in-place rents at Tacara were approximately $1,425
per unit. Consistent with most multifamily apartment properties, Tacara has lease terms that are generally one
year.

Investments in Real Estate-Related Securities

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, we acquired $1.9 million and $21.8 million, respectively,
of common stock of publicly-traded REITs. The fair value of our real estate-related investments was
approximately $21.8 million as of June 30, 2018.

Factors Impacting Our Operating Results

Our results of operations are affected by a number of factors and depend on the rental revenue we receive from
the properties that we acquire, the timing of lease expirations, general market conditions, operating expenses, the
competitive environment for real estate assets and dividend income from our investments in real estate-related
securities.

Rental Revenues

We receive income primarily from rental revenue generated by the properties that we acquire. The amount of
rental revenue depends upon a number of factors, including: our ability to enter into leases with increasing or
market value rents for the properties that we acquire; and rent collection, which primarily relates to each future
tenant’s financial condition and ability to make rent payments to us on time.

Competitive Environment

We face competition from a diverse mix of market participants, including but not limited to, other companies
with similar business models, independent investors, hedge funds and other real estate investors. Competition
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from others may diminish our opportunities to acquire a desired property on favorable terms or at all. In addition,
this competition may put pressure on us to reduce the rental rates below those that we expect to charge for the
properties that we acquire, which would adversely affect our financial results.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses include general and administrative expenses, including legal, accounting, and other
expenses related to corporate governance, public reporting and compliance with the various provisions of U.S.
securities laws. As we have with the leases associated with our initial industrial properties, we generally expect
to structure our industrial leases so that the tenant is responsible for taxes, maintenance, insurance, and structural
repairs with respect to the premises throughout the lease term. Increases or decreases in such operating expenses
will impact our overall financial performance.

Our Qualification as a REIT

We have been organized and we intend to elect, and to operate our business so as to qualify, to be taxed as a
REIT, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, commencing with our taxable year ending December 31, 2018.
Shares of our common stock are subject to restrictions on ownership and transfer that are intended, among other
purposes, to assist us in qualifying and maintaining our qualification as a REIT. In order for us to qualify as a
REIT under the Code, we are required to, among other things, distribute as dividends at least 90% of our REIT
taxable income, determined without regard to the dividends-paid deduction and excluding net capital gains, to
our stockholders and meet certain tests regarding the nature of our income and assets. In order to satisfy a
requirement that no five or fewer individuals own (or be treated as owning) more than 50% of our stock, subject
to certain exceptions, no person or entity may own, or be deemed to own, by virtue of the applicable constructive
ownership provisions of the Code, more than 9.8% (in value or number of shares, whichever is more restrictive)
of the aggregate of our outstanding shares of stock or more than 9.8% (in value or number of shares, whichever is
more restrictive) of our outstanding common stock.

Tax legislation commonly referred to as the Tax Cuts & Jobs Act (the “TCJA”) was enacted on December 22,
2017. Among other things, the TCJA reduces the U.S. federal corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21% and
creates new taxes on certain foreign-sourced earnings. Although management is still evaluating the effects of the
TCJA, we do not believe that the TCJA will materially impact our consolidated financial statements. This is due
to the fact that we are operating in a manner which will (1) allow us to qualify as a REIT and (2) result in a full
valuation allowance being recorded against our deferred tax balances. We also estimate that the new taxes on
foreign-sourced earnings are not likely to apply to our foreign investments.

On December 22, 2017, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118”), which provides
guidance on accounting for the tax effects of the TCJA. SAB 118 provides a measurement period that should not
extend beyond one year from the TCJA enactment date for companies to complete the accounting under
ASC 740, Income Taxes. Although we believe that the impacts of the TCJA will be immaterial to our financial
results, we continue to analyze certain aspects of the TCJA, therefore our estimates may change as additional
information becomes available. Many of the provisions of the TCJA will require guidance through the issuance
of Treasury regulations in order to assess their effect. There may be a substantial delay before such regulations
are promulgated, increasing the uncertainty as to the ultimate effect of the statutory amendments on us. It is also
likely that there will be technical corrections legislation proposed with respect to the TCJA this year, the effect of
which cannot be predicted and may be adverse to us or our stockholders.

We are a taxable subchapter C corporation for our initial tax year ending December 31, 2017. We are wholly-
owned by TIAA as of December 31, 2017 and will be included in TIAA’s consolidated U.S. corporation income
tax return for our initial tax year. In accordance with SAB 1B in conjunction with ASC 740, we have determined
our income tax provision on a separate return basis. The income tax provision as of June 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017 is $0.
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Results of Operations

We were formed on May 1, 2017, received our initial capitalization on May 19, 2017 and commenced active real
estate operations in December 2017 in connection with the acquisitions of our initial properties. Therefore,
comparative operating results are not relevant to the discussion of operating results for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2018, and we expect revenues and expenses to increase as we acquire more properties over a full
calendar year. The following table sets forth the results of our operations for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2018 (in thousands):

Three Months
Ended June 30,

2018

Six Months
Ended June 30,

2018

Revenues
Rental revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,487 $ 4,755
Tenant reimbursement income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 526 1,080
Other revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2

Total Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,015 5,837
Expenses

Rental property operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,138 2,104
General and administrative expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,231 2,922
Advisory fee due to affiliate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 346 641
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,856 3,629

Total Expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,571 9,296
Other Income
Realized and unrealized income from real estate-related

securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,782 2,170
Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61 61

Net Income (Loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 287 (1,228)

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Stockholders . . . . . . . $ 287 $(1,228)

Revenues

Rental revenue – Our rental revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2018 related to rent generated from our
multifamily properties, office property and industrial properties was $1.3 million, $0.1 million and $1.1 million,
respectively. Our rental revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2018 related to rent generated from our
multifamily properties, office property and industrial properties was $2.6 million, $0.1 million and $2.1 million,
respectively. The Company’s rental revenue is derived from its seven investment properties, of which five
properties were acquired in December 2017 and two properties were acquired in June 2018.

Tenant reimbursement income – Tennant reimbursement income for the three and six months ended June 30,
2018 primarily includes amounts due from tenants for costs related to common area maintenance, real estate
taxes and other recoverable costs included in lease agreements primarily related to our industrial properties.

Expenses

Rental property operating expenses – Property operating expenses for the three and six months ended June 30,
2018 primarily includes real estate taxes, utilities and other maintenance expenses associated with our real
properties.

General and administrative expenses – General and administrative expenses for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2018 primarily includes organization costs, audit and other professional fees. Organization costs were
$0.2 million and $1.1 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, respectively.
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Advisory fee due to affiliate – The advisory fee for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 related to
amounts owed to the Advisor.

Depreciation and amortization – Depreciation and amortization for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018
relates to property, furniture and fixtures, equipment and intangible assets in connection with our real properties.

Realized and unrealized income from real estate-related securities – Income for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2018 includes unrealized gains of $1.6 million and $1.9 million, respectively, and dividend income of
$0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively, relating to the Company’s real estate-related securities.

Net income (loss) – Our net income for the three months ended June 30, 2018 amounted to $0.3 million and our
net loss for the six months ended June 30, 2018 amounted to $1.2 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary needs for liquidity and capital resources are to fund our investments, to make distributions to our
stockholders, to repurchase shares of our common stock pursuant to our share repurchase plan, to pay our
offering and operating fees and expenses and to pay interest on any outstanding indebtedness we may incur. We
will obtain the funds required to purchase investments and conduct our operations from the net proceeds of the
Offering, the private placement of Class N shares to TIAA and any future offerings we may conduct, from
secured and unsecured borrowings from banks and other lenders and from any undistributed funds from
operations. Generally, cash needs for items other than asset acquisitions are expected to be met from operations,
and cash needs for asset acquisitions are funded by the private placement of Class N shares to TIAA, public
offerings of our Class T, Class S, Class D and Class I shares and debt financings. However, there may be a delay
between the sale of our shares and our purchase of assets, which could result in a delay in the benefits to our
stockholders, if any, of returns generated from our investment operations. Once we have raised substantial
proceeds in the Offering and acquired a broad portfolio of real estate investments, our target leverage ratio will
be approximately 30% to 50% of our gross real estate assets (measured using the fair market value of gross real
estate assets, including equity in our securities portfolio), including property and entity-level debt, but excluding
debt on the securities portfolio, although it may exceed this level during the offering stage. Our leverage ratio
calculation will also factor in the leverage ratios of other vehicles and funds established by TH Real Estate in
which we may invest, including the European Cities Fund and the Asia-Pacific Cities Fund. Our charter restricts
the amount of indebtedness we may incur to 300% of our net assets, which approximates 75% of the aggregate
cost of our investments, but does not restrict the amount of indebtedness we may incur with respect to any single
investment. However, we may borrow in excess of this amount if such excess is approved by a majority of our
independent directors, and disclosed to stockholders in the next quarterly report, along with justification for such
excess.

If we are unable to raise substantial funds in our Offering, we will make fewer investments resulting in less
diversification in terms of the type, number and size of investments we make and the value of an investment in us
will fluctuate with the performance of the specific assets we acquire. Further, we have certain fixed operating
expenses, including certain expenses as a publicly offered REIT, regardless of whether we are able to raise
substantial funds. Our inability to raise substantial funds would increase our fixed operating expenses as a
percentage of gross income, reducing our net income and limiting our ability to make distributions.

Our operating fees and expenses include, among other things, the advisory fee we pay to the Advisor, legal, audit
and valuation expenses, federal and state filing fees, printing expenses, administrative fees, transfer agent fees,
marketing and distribution expenses and fees related to acquiring, financing, appraising and managing our
properties. The stockholder servicing fees we pay to the Dealer Manager are accrued up to a maximum amount of
8.75% of the sum of the gross proceeds at the time of the sale of common shares. We do not have any office or
personnel expenses as we do not have any employees. We reimburse the Advisor for certain out-of-pocket
expenses in connection with our operations. The Advisor has agreed to advance all of our organization and
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offering expenses on our behalf (other than upfront selling commissions, dealer manager fees and stockholder
servicing fees) through the first anniversary of our first acquisition. These expenses include legal, accounting,
printing, mailing and filing fees and expenses, due diligence expenses of participating broker-dealers supported
by detailed and itemized invoices, costs in connection with preparing sales materials, design and website
expenses, fees and expenses of our transfer agent, fees to attend retail seminars sponsored by participating
broker-dealers and reimbursements for customary travel, lodging, and meals, but exclude selling commissions,
dealer manager fees and stockholder servicing fees. We will reimburse the Advisor for such advanced expenses
ratably over the 60 months following the first anniversary of our first investment acquisition. For purposes of
calculating our NAV, the organization and offering expenses paid by the Advisor through the first anniversary of
our first investment acquisition are not recognized as expenses or as a component of equity and reflected in our
NAV until we reimburse the Advisor for these costs.

As of June 30, 2018, the Advisor and its affiliates had incurred organization and offering expenses on our behalf
of $4.3 million, consisting of offering costs of $3.2 million and organization costs of $1.1 million. Such costs
became our liability on January 31, 2018, the date as of which the Offering was declared effective. After the first
anniversary of the commencement of the Offering, we will reimburse the Advisor for any organization and
offering expenses that it incurs on our behalf as and when incurred. After the termination of each three-year
public offering, the Advisor has agreed to reimburse us to the extent that the organization and offering expenses
that we incur with respect to that offering exceed 15% of the gross proceeds from the Offering.

Although we have not received any commitments from lenders to fund a line of credit to date, we may decide to
obtain a line of credit to fund acquisitions, to repurchase shares pursuant to our share repurchase plan and for any
other corporate purpose. If we decide to obtain a line of credit, we would expect that it would afford us
borrowing availability to fund repurchases. As our assets increase, however, it may not be commercially feasible
or we may not be able to secure an adequate line of credit to fund share repurchases. Moreover, actual
availability may be reduced at any given time if we use borrowings under the line of credit to fund share
repurchases or for other corporate purposes.

Cash Flows

The following table sets forth the primary sources and uses of cash for the six months ended June 30, 2018 (in
thousands):

Six Months
Ended June 30,

2018

Cash flows provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,748
Cash flows used in investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (101,091)
Cash flows provided by financing activities . . . . . . . . . . 101,611

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,268

Operating activities – Cash flows provided by operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2018 were
$1.7 million which primarily related to an increase in amounts due to affiliates ($1.1 million) and accounts
payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities ($0.7 million).

Investing activities – Cash flows used in investing activities were approximately $101.1 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2018, which primarily related to the acquisitions of Defoor Hills and Tacara
($81.1 million), and acquisitions of real estate-related investment securities ($21.8 million).

Financing activities – Cash flows provided by financing activities were $101.6 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2018, which primarily related to TIAA’s purchase of 10,040,483 shares of our common stock for an
aggregate purchase price of $100.8 million.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Funds from Operations (“FFO”) and Adjusted FFO (“AFFO”) are non-GAAP financial measures used by many
investors and analysts in the real estate industry. FFO is defined by the National Association of Real Estate
Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”). FFO represents net income (loss) (calculated in accordance with GAAP),
excluding gains (losses) on sales and/or impairment of real estate assets, plus depreciation and amortization on
real estate assets, and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. This is a common
non-GAAP financial measure as accounting for real estate assets on an historical cost basis may not correlate
with the value of real estate as determined by market conditions. AFFO further adjusts FFO for other items we
believe are not related to our core operations, such as for straight-line rental income. AFFO is not defined by
NAREIT and the calculation of AFFO may not be comparable to disclosures made by other REITs.

Management believes that net income (loss), as defined by GAAP, is the most appropriate earnings
measurement. However, management believes FFO and AFFO to be supplemental measures of a REIT’s
performance because they provide an understanding of the operating performance of our properties without
giving effect to certain significant non-cash items, primarily depreciation expense. Historical cost accounting for
real estate assets in accordance with GAAP assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably
over time. However, real estate values instead have historically risen or fallen with market conditions. We
believe that by excluding the effect of depreciation, FFO and AFFO can facilitate comparisons of operating
performance between periods. We report FFO and AFFO because these measures are observed by management
to also be the predominant measures used by the REIT industry and by industry analysts to evaluate REITs and
because FFO and AFFO are consistently reported, discussed, and compared by research analysts in their notes
and publications about REITs. For these reasons, management has deemed it appropriate to disclose and discuss
FFO and AFFO.

Our calculations of FFO and AFFO and related methodology may differ from those used by other REITs, and
accordingly, may not be comparable to other REITs. Further, FFO and AFFO do not represent cash flow
available for management’s discretionary use. FFO and AFFO should not be considered as an alternative to net
income (loss) (computed in accordance with GAAP) as an indicator of our financial performance or to cash flow
from operating activities (computed in accordance with GAAP) as an indicator of our liquidity, nor is it
indicative of funds available to fund our cash needs, including our ability to pay dividends or make distributions.
FFO and AFFO should be considered only as supplements to net income (loss) computed in accordance with
GAAP as measures of our operations.

Neither the SEC, NAREIT, nor any regulatory body has passed judgment on the acceptability of the adjustments
used to calculate AFFO. In the future, the SEC, NAREIT or a regulatory body may decide to standardize the
allowable adjustments across the non-listed REIT industry at which point we may adjust our calculation and
characterization of AFFO.
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The below is a reconciliation of net income (loss) to FFO and AFFO (in thousands):

Three Months
Ended

June 30, 2018

Six Months
Ended

June 30, 2018

Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 287 $(1,228)
Adjustments:

Real estate depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,856 3,629

Funds From Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,143 $ 2,401

Funds from Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,143 $ 2,401
Adjustments:

Straight-line rental income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (132) (177)
Amortization of below market lease intangibles . . . . . . . . (15) (31)
Organization costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 218 1,091
Unrealized gain from changes in fair value of real estate

related securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,578) (1,852)
Amortization of restricted stock awards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 28

Adjusted Funds from Operations attributable to
stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 653 $ 1,460

Net Asset Value

Our board of directors, including a majority of our independent directors, has adopted valuation guidelines that
contain a comprehensive set of methodologies to be used in connection with the calculation of our net asset value
(“NAV”). The overarching principle of these guidelines is to produce a valuation that represents a fair and
accurate estimate of the value of our investments or the price that would be received for our investments in an
arm’s-length transaction between market participants, less our liabilities. These valuation guidelines are largely
based upon standard industry practices used by private, open-end real estate funds and are administered by the
Advisor and its affiliates.

Our board of directors monitors compliance with our valuation guidelines on an ongoing basis. The calculation of
our NAV is intended to be a calculation of fair value of our assets less our outstanding liabilities and may differ
from our financial statements. As a public company, we are required to issue financial statements based on
historical cost in accordance with GAAP. To calculate our NAV for the purpose of establishing a purchase and
repurchase price for our shares, we have adopted a model, as explained below, that adjusts the value of our assets
from historical cost to fair value in accordance with GAAP. Because these fair value calculations involve
significant professional judgment in the application of both observable and unobservable attributes, the
calculated fair value of our assets may differ from their actual realizable value or future fair value. Furthermore,
no rule or regulation requires that we calculate NAV in a certain way. While we believe our NAV calculation
methodologies are consistent with standard industry principles, there is no established practice among public
REITs, whether listed or not, for calculating NAV in order to establish a purchase and repurchase price. As a
result, other public REITs may use different methodologies or assumptions to determine NAV.

The valuation of our real properties is managed by our independent valuation advisor, RERC, LLC, a valuation
firm selected by the Advisor and approved by our board of directors. The Advisor is ultimately responsible for
the determination of our NAV.

The purchase price per share in our Offering for each class of our common stock will generally equal our prior
month’s NAV per share, as determined monthly, plus applicable selling commissions and dealer manager fees.
Our NAV for each class of shares is based on the net asset values of our investments (including real estate-
related assets), the addition of any other assets (such as cash on hand) and the deduction of any liabilities,
including any stockholder servicing fees applicable to such class of shares.
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The following table provides the major components of our NAV as of June 30, 2018, including a reconciliation
between stockholders’ equity under GAAP and NAV (in thousands, except per share data):

Components of NAV
June 30,

2018

Investments in real property . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 206,800
Investments in real estate-related securities . . . . . . . . . . . 21,831
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,923
Restricted cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 445
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,061)

Net Asset Value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 231,964

Number of Outstanding Shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,550,424

Reconciliation of Stockholders’ Equity to NAV
June 30,

2018

Stockholders’ equity under GAAP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $221,113
Adjustments:

Organization and offering costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,288
Accrued stockholder servicing fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23
Unrealized real estate appreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,872
Accumulated depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . 3,859
Straight-line rent receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (191)

Net Asset Value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $231,964

Our investments in real estate are recorded at fair value when determining NAV, as compared to historical cost
for purposes of GAAP. Accordingly, the related depreciation and amortization is not recorded when determining
NAV. NAV also excludes any effects for straight-line rental income. The Company reimburses the Advisor for
all organization and offering costs ratably over a 60 month period following December 31, 2018.

The following table provides a breakdown of our total NAV and NAV per share by share class as of June 30,
2018 (in thousands, except per share data):

NAV Per Share
Class D
Shares

Class I
Shares

Class N
Shares Total

Net asset value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 266 $ 605 $231,093 $231,964
Number of outstanding shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26 59 22,465 22,550

NAV per share as of June 30, 2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $10.24 $10.26 $ 10.29

As of June 30, 2018, we had not sold any Class T or Class S shares.

Set forth below are the weighted averages of the key assumptions in the discounted cash flow methodology used
in the June 30, 2018 valuations, based on property types. Once we own more than one office or retail property,
we will include the key assumptions for such property type.

Property Type
Discount

Rate

Exit
Capitalization

Rate

Industrial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.2% 6.3%
Multifamily . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.0% 5.4%
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These assumptions are determined by our independent valuation advisor. A change in these assumptions would
impact the calculation of the value of our property investments. For example, assuming all other factors remain
unchanged, the changes listed below would result in the following effects on our investment values:

Input
Hypothetical

Change

Industrial
Investment

Values

Multifamily
Investment

Values

Discount rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.25% decrease 1.90% 1.80%
(weighted average) . . . . . . . . . . 0.25% increase -1.90% -1.70%

Exit capitalization rate . . . . . . . . . . . 0.25% decrease 2.30% 2.80%
(weighted average) . . . . . . . . . . 0.25% increase -2.50% -2.50%

Limitations and Risks

As with any valuation methodology, our methodology is based upon a number of estimates and assumptions that
may not be accurate or complete. Different parties with different assumptions and estimates could derive a
different NAV per share. Accordingly, with respect to our NAV per share, we can provide no assurance that:

(1) a stockholder would be able to realize this NAV per share upon attempting to resell his or her shares;

(2) we would be able to achieve, for our stockholders, the NAV per share, upon a listing of our shares of
common stock on a national securities exchange, selling our real estate portfolio, or merging with
an-other company; or

(3) the NAV per share, or the methodologies relied upon to estimate the NAV per share, will be found by
any regulatory authority to comply with any regulatory requirements.

Furthermore, the NAV per share was calculated as of a particular point in time. The NAV per share will fluctuate
over time in response to, among other things, changes in real estate market fundamentals, capital markets
activities, and attributes specific to the properties and assets within our portfolio.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with GAAP involves significant judgements and
assumptions and require estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgments affect our
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and our disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. With
different estimates or assumptions, materially different amounts could be reported in our financial statements.
Additionally, other companies may utilize different estimates that may impact the comparability of our results of
operations to those of companies in similar businesses. We consider our accounting policies over investments in
real estate and revenue recognition to be our critical accounting policies. See Note 2 “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” to the consolidated financial statements for further descriptions of such critical accounting
policies along with other significant accounting policy disclosures.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 – “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” to the consolidated financial statements in this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for a discussion concerning recent accounting pronouncements.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table aggregates our contractual obligations and commitments with payments due subsequent to
June 30, 2018 (in thousands):

Obligations Total
Less than

1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years
More than

5 years

Organization and offering expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,288 $358 $1,715 $1,715 $500

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,288 $358 $1,715 $1,715 $500

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

As of June 30, 2018, our investments in real estate-related securities consisted of $21.8 million in shares of
common stock of publicly-traded REITs. We may be exposed to market risk with respect to our investments in
real estate-related securities due to changes in the fair value of our investments. The fair value may fluctuate,
thus the amount we will realized upon any sale of our investments is unknown. As of June 30, 2018, the fair
value at which we may sell our investments in real estate-related securities is not known, but we believe that a
10% change in the fair value of our investments in real estate-related securities may result in an unrealized loss
of $2.2 million. As of prior period end, the Company did not hold any securities.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our “disclosure controls and procedures” (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)), as of
the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q was made under the supervision and with
the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer
(“CFO”). Based upon this evaluation, our CEO and CFO have concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures (a) are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports filed or submitted
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by
SEC rules and forms and (b) include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is accumulated
and communicated to our management, including our CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our “internal control over financial reporting” (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the
Exchange Act) that occurred during the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

Neither we nor the Advisor are currently involved in any material litigation.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

There have been no material changes to the risk factors previously disclosed under “Risk Factors” in our
Registration Statement on Form S-11.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

On January 22, 2018, TIAA purchased $75.8 million of our Class N common stock (7,575,000 shares) at a
purchase price of $10.00 per share. On June 1, 2018, TIAA purchased an additional $25 million of our Class N
common stock (2,465,483 shares) at a purchase price of $10.14 per share.

These transactions claimed to be exempt from the registration provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, by virtue of Section 4(a)(2) thereof, as these transactions did not involve any public offering.

Use of Offering Proceeds

On January 31, 2018, our Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333- 222231), registering our initial
public offering of up to $5 billion in any combination of shares of our Class T common stock, Class S common
stock, Class D common stock and Class I common stock, each with a par value of $0.01 per share, was initially
declared effective by the SEC under the Securities Act, and we commenced our initial public offering. The per
share price for each class of common stock sold in our public offering varies and is a transaction price that is
generally equal to our prior month’s net asset value per share, as determined monthly, plus applicable upfront
selling commissions and dealer manager fees. Nuveen Securities, LLC, a FINRA-registered broker-dealer
affiliated with our Advisor, is serving as the dealer manager for our initial public offering. No class of our
common stock is currently traded on any exchange, nor is there an established public trading market for our
common stock.

As of June 30, 2018, we received net proceeds of $837,250 in connection with our initial public offering. The
following table summarizes certain information about the proceeds therefrom:

Class S
Shares

Class T
Shares

Class D
Shares

Class I
Shares Total

Offering proceeds:
Shares sold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 25,641 59,288 84,929
Gross offering proceeds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $— $— $260,000 $600,000 $860,000
Selling commissions and other dealer manager fees . . . — — — — —
Accrued stockholder servicing fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (22,750) — $ (22,750)

Net offering proceeds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $— $— $237,250 $600,000 $837,250

From the commencement of our public offering through June 30, 2018, the net offering proceeds referred to
above have been allocated to the following uses:

• $0 was used to partially fund the purchase price of our real properties;

• $0 was used to purchase real estate equity securities;
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• $0 was used to repurchase shares under our share repurchase program; and

• Approximately $837,000 was available for working capital or subsequent investment.

Share Repurchase Plan

On January 23, 2018 we adopted a share repurchase plan whereby on a monthly basis stockholders may request
that we repurchase all or a portion of their shares of common stock. Under our share repurchase plan, to the
extent we choose to repurchase shares in any particular month, we will only repurchase shares as of the opening
of the last calendar day of that month (each such date, a “Repurchase Date”). Repurchases are made at the
transaction price in effect on the Repurchase Date, except that shares that have not been outstanding for at least
one year will be repurchased at 95% of the transaction price. The total amount of aggregate repurchases of
Class T, Class S, Class D and Class I shares is currently limited to no more than 2% of our aggregate NAV per
month and no more than 5% of our aggregate NAV per calendar quarter. From and after the date that the Class N
shares held by TIAA become eligible for repurchase pursuant to our share repurchase plan, the total amount of
aggregate repurchases of all classes of shares, including the Class N shares, will be limited to no more than 2% of
our aggregate NAV per month and no more than 5% of our aggregate NAV per calendar quarter.

During the three months ended June 30, 2018, we did not repurchase any shares of our common stock.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

None.

Item 5. Other Information.

None.

Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibit No. Description

31.1* Certification of the Principal Executive Officer of the Company pursuant to Exchange Act
Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

31.2* Certification of the Principal Financial Officer of the Company pursuant to Exchange Act
Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

32.1* Certification of the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer of the Company
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

* Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.

By: /s/ Michael J.L. Sales

Michael J.L. Sales
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Board

By: /s/ James E. Sinople

James E. Sinople
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Date: August 14, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Owners
Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying combined statement of revenues and certain expenses of 2282 and
2300 Defoor Hills Rd (the “Properties”) for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the
combined statement of revenues and certain expenses.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statement

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial statement in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement is
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statement in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statement.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statement referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, the combined
revenues and certain expenses, described in Note 2, of the Properties for the year ended December 31, 2017, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statement, which describes that the accompanying combined
financial statement was prepared for the purpose of complying with rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission and it is not intended to be a complete presentation of the Properties’ combined
revenues and certain expenses. Our opinion is not modified with respect to that matter.

/s/ Marcum LLP

Marcum LLP

Roseland, NJ
July 20, 2018

B-2



2282 AND 2230 DEFOOR HILLS RD
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND CERTAIN EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
AND THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2018

(Unaudited)
Year Ended

December 31, 2017

Revenues
Rental revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $532,437 $ 78,080
Parking income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 12,550
Tenant reimbursements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 104,704 8,424

Total Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 637,141 99,054

Certain Expenses
General and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30,238 100,899
Repairs and maintenance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,089 60,456
Utilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24,265 62,074
Real estate taxes and insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36,725 141,023

Total Certain Expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 103,317 364,452

Revenues in Excess of Certain Expenses
(Certain Expenses in Excess of Revenues) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $533,824 $(265,398)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the combined statements of revenues and certain expenses.
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2282 AND 2230 DEFOOR HILLS RD
NOTES TO COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND CERTAIN EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND
THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 (UNAUDITED)

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The accompanying combined statements of revenues and certain expenses include the operations of 2282 and
2300 Defoor Hills Rd (the “Properties”), which consist of two office properties, with approximately 91,000
(unaudited) square feet of rentable space, located in Atlanta, GA:

PROPERTY ADDRESS RBA (SF)

2282 Defoor Hills . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2282 Defoor Hills Rd, Atlanta, GA 30,060
2300 Defoor Hills . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2300 Defoor Hills Rd, Atlanta, GA 60,760

90,820

On May 15, 2018, THRE Global Investments LLC (the “Buyer”) entered into a purchase and sale agreement with
SHW Wyatt Defoor Hills LLC and SWH Wyatt 2282 Defoor Hills LLC (collectively the “Seller”) to acquire the
Properties for a purchase price of $34.6 million. On June 15, 2018, the Buyer assigned its right, title and interest
in and to the purchase and sale agreement to NR Defoor Hills LLC (the “Company”).

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying combined statement of revenues and certain expenses have been prepared for the purpose of
complying with Rule 3-14 of Regulation S-X promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
Accordingly, the statements are not representative of the actual results of operations for the periods presented as
revenues and certain expenses, which may not be directly attributable to the revenues and expenses to be incurred
in the future operations of the Properties, have been excluded. Such excluded items include depreciation and
amortization, related party fees, management fees, and non-recurring professional fees.

INTERIM UNAUDITED INFORMATION

The statement of revenues and certain expenses for the three-months ended March 31, 2018 is unaudited. In the
opinion of the Company, such statement reflects all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of revenues and
certain expenses in accordance with Rule 3-14 of Regulation S-X as described above. All such adjustments are of
a normal recurring nature.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of a financial statement in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that in certain circumstances may affect the reporting
and disclosure of revenues and certain expenses. Actual results could materially differ from these estimates.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Rental revenue includes base rents that each tenant pays in accordance with the terms of its respective lease and
is reported on a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable term of the lease which includes the effects of rent
steps and rent abatements, if any, under the leases. The Company commences rental revenue recognition when
the tenant takes possession of the leased space and the leased space is substantially ready for its intended use.
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2282 AND 2230 DEFOOR HILLS RD
NOTES TO COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND CERTAIN EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND
THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 (UNAUDITED)

Tenant reimbursements related to reimbursements of common area maintenance, insurance and real estate taxes
are recognized as revenue in the period the applicable expenses are incurred.

NOTE 3 – MINIMUM FUTURE LEASE RENTALS

As of March 31, 2018, the Properties lease space to three tenants under leases expiring on various dates through
May 2030. Approximate future minimum operating lease payments to be collected under non-cancelable leases,
excluding other lease payments that are not fixed and determinable, in effect as of March 31, 2018, are as follows
by year:

2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 377,000
2019 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,936,000
2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,064,000
2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,121,000
2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,179,000
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,223,000

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $24,900,000

NOTE 4 – CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

For the year ended December 31, 2017 and for the three months ended March 31, 2018 (unaudited), one tenant
contributed to 100% and 89%, respectively of the rental revenue for the Properties.

NOTE 5 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through July 20, 2018,
the date the financial statement was available to be issued.
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Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.
Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

On June 15, 2018, the Company completed the acquisition of the property known as Defoor Hills. The Company
funded the acquisition with cash on hand. Defoor Hills is a 90,820 square foot adaptive reuse/creative office
project built in 1970 and redeveloped in 2017. Defoor Hills is 100% leased to three tenants with a weighted
average lease term of 11 years.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2018 is presented as if the
Defoor Hills acquisition was completed on March 31, 2018.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three months ended March 31,
2018 and for the year ended December 31, 2017, are presented as if the Defoor Hills acquisition was completed
on January 1, 2017.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared to comply
with Article 11 of Regulation S-X, as promulgated by the SEC. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated
financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements of the Company and notes
thereto presented in the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2018
and Special Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. The unaudited pro forma balance sheet
and income statements are not necessarily indicative of what the actual financial position and operating results
would have been had the Defoor Hills acquisition occurred on March 31, 2018 and January 1, 2017, respectively,
nor are they indicative of future operating results of the Company.
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Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.
Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

As of March 31, 2018
(Unaudited, in thousands, except share and per share data)

NREIT
Historical

Defoor Hills
Acquisition

NREIT
Total

Assets
Investments in real estate, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $114,021 $ 30,071(a) $144,092
Investments in real estate-related securities, at fair value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,218 — 20,218
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60,861 (33,720)(b) 27,141
Intangible assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,359 3,737(a) 10,096
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 578 — 578

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $202,037 $ 88 $202,125

Liabilities and Equity
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,762 $ 88(c) $ 2,850
Due to affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,383 — 3,383
Intangible liabilities, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 234 — 234

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,379 $ 88 $ 6,467

Equity
Common stock – Class N shares, $0.01 par value per share, 100,000,000

shares authorized, 20,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at
March 31, 2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200 — 200

Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 197,301 — 197,301
Accumulated deficit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,843) — (1,843)

Total equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 195,658 — 195,658

Total liabilities and equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $202,037 $ 88 $202,125

(a) Represents the purchase price of the Defoor Hills acquisition, including transactions costs, as if the
transaction was completed as of March 31, 2018. The Company determined this acquisition was an
asset acquisition in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAP”) and allocated the total purchase price to the assets acquired based on relative fair
value. The following table details the allocation of the Defoor Hills purchase price:

March 31,
2018 Useful Lives

Building and building improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $25,600 5 - 40 years
Land and land improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,471 15 years
In-place lease intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,965 5 - 12 years
Other intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,772 Less than 1 - 12 years

Total purchase price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $33,808

(b) The Defoor Hills acquisition was funded using the Company’s cash on hand.

(c) Represents credits provided to the Company at closing related to the proration of property taxes ($51)
and adjustments for prepaid rent and security deposits ($37).

B-7



Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.
Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2018
(Unaudited, in thousands, except share and per share data)

NREIT
Historical

Defoor Hills
Acquisition

Pro Forma
Adjustments

NREIT
Pro Forma

Revenues
Rental revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,268 $532(a) $ — $ 2,800
Tenant reimbursement income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 554 105(a) — 659

Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,822 637 — 3,459
Expenses
Rental property operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 966 73(a)(b) — 1,039
General and administrative expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,691 30(a) — 1,721
Advisory fee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 295 — — 295
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,773 — 278(c) 2,051

Total expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,725 103 278 5,106
Other income
Income from real estate-related securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . 388 — — 388

Total other income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 388 — — 388
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (1,515) $534 $(278) $ (1,259)

Net loss per share of common stock – basic and
diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (0.08) $ (0.07)

Weighted-average shares of common stock
outstanding, basic and diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,148,333 18,148,333

(a) Represents the operating results attributable to Defoor Hills for the three months ended March 31,
2018.

(b) The following table details the rental property operating expenses for Defoor Hills for the three months
ended March 31, 2018:

Defoor Hills

Repairs and maintenance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $12
Utilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24
Real estate taxes and insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $73

(c) Represents depreciation and amortization expense for the Defoor Hills assets for the three months
ended March 31, 2018. The Company records depreciation and amortization on a straight-line basis.
The following table details the depreciation and amortization expense for the three months ended
March 31, 2018:

Defoor Hills

Depreciation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $190
Amortization expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 88

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $278
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Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.
Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
(Unaudited, in thousands, except share and per share data)

NREIT
Historical (a)

Defoor Hills
Acquisition

Pro Forma
Adjustments

NREIT Pro
Forma

Revenues
Rental revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 374 $ 78(b) $ — $ 452
Tenant reimbursement and parking income . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 21(b) — 37

Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 390 99 — 489
Expenses
Rental property operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 175 263(b)(c) — 438
General and administrative expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 238 101(b) — 339
Advisory fee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44 — — 44
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 261 — 1,110(d) 1,371

Total expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 718 364 1,110 2,192
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (328) $(265) $(1,110) $ (1,703)

Net loss per share of common stock – basic and diluted . . . $ (0.30) $ (1.55)

Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding,
basic and diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,099,405 1,099,405

(a) Historical financial information obtained from NREIT’s 2017 Special Report on Form 10-K. As noted
in the Special Report, NREIT was formed on May 1, 2017 and subsequently capitalized on May 19,
2017. The Company’s real estate operations did not commence until December 2017.

(b) Represents the operating results attributable to Defoor Hills for the year ended December 31, 2017.

(c) The following table details the rental property operating expenses for Defoor Hills for the year ended
December 31, 2017:

Defoor Hills

Repairs and maintenance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 60
Utilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 62
Real estate taxes and insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 141

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $263

(d) Represents depreciation and amortization expense for the Defoor Hills assets for the year ended
December 31, 2017. The Company records depreciation and amortization on a straight-line basis. The
following table details the depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended December 31,
2017:

Defoor Hills

Depreciation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 760
Amortization expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 350

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,110
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Owners
Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying statement of revenues and certain expenses of Tacara Steiner Ranch (the
“Property”) for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the statement of revenues and certain
expenses.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statement

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial statement in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement is
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statement in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statement.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statement referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, the revenues and
certain expenses, described in Note 2, of the Property for the year ended December 31, 2017, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statement, which describes that the accompanying financial
statement was prepared for the purpose of complying with rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission and it is not intended to be a complete presentation of the Property’s revenues and certain
expenses. Our opinion is not modified with respect to that matter.

/s/ Marcum LLP

Marcum LLP
Roseland, NJ
July 20, 2018
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TACARA STEINER RANCH
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND CERTAIN EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
AND THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 (UNAUDITED)

Three Months
Ended

March 31, 2018
(Unaudited)

Year Ended
December 31, 2017

Revenues
Rental revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $807,366 $1,061,417
Other income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65,407 120,832

Total Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 872,773 1,182,249

Certain Expenses
General and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 110,192 381,850
Repairs and maintenance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,632 61,288
Utilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47,313 77,870
Leasing and advertising . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36,336 117,413
Real estate taxes and insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 366,334 160,945

Total Certain Expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 582,807 799,366

Revenues in Excess of Certain Expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $289,966 $ 382,883

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the statements of revenues and expenses.
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TACARA STEINER RANCH
NOTES TO STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND CERTAIN EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND
THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 (UNAUDITED)

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The accompanying statements of revenues and certain expenses include the operations of Tacara Steiner Ranch
(the “Property”), which consists of an apartment complex with ten buildings and a clubhouse, with approximately
236,000 (unaudited) square feet of rentable space, located at 4306 N Quinlan Park Rd, Austin, TX.

On May 18, 2018, THRE Global Investments LLC (the “Buyer”) entered into a purchase and sale agreement with
TASR Property Owner, Ltd. (the “Seller”) to acquire the Property for a purchase price of $47.7 million. On
June 25, 2018, the buyer assigned its right, title and interest in and to the purchase and sale agreement to NR
Tacara at Steiner Ranch LLC (the “Company”).

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying statement of revenues and certain expenses have been prepared for the purpose of complying
with Rule 3-14 of Regulation S-X promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Accordingly, the
statements are not representative of the actual results of operations for the periods presented as revenues and
certain expenses, which may not be directly attributable to the revenues and expenses expected to be incurred in
the future operations of the Property, have been excluded. Such excluded items include depreciation,
amortization, related party fees, management fees and non-recurring professional fees.

INTERIM UNAUDITED INFORMATION

The statement of revenues and expenses for the three-months ended March 31, 2018 is unaudited. In the opinion
of the Company, such statement reflects all adjustments necessary for a fair statement of revenues and certain
expenses in accordance with Rule 3-14 of Regulation S-X as described above. All such adjustments are of a
normal recurring nature.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of a financial statement in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that in certain circumstances may affect the reporting
and disclosure of revenues and certain expenses. Actual results could materially differ from these estimates.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Property’s residential operations consists of rental income earned from tenants under operating leases with
lease terms typically ranging from 12-15 months. The rental income is not reported on a straight line basis as the
leases are considered short term leases.

Other income is recognized when due and consists of charges billed to tenants for late charges, storage, parking,
amenities and repairs.

NOTE 3 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through July 20, 2018,
the date the financial statement was available to be issued.
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Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.
Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

On June 25, 2018, the Company completed the acquisition of the property known as Tacara. The Company
funded the acquisition with cash on hand. Constructed in 2017, Tacara is approximately 235,808 square feet and
consists of 246 units with a mix of one-, two- and three-bedroom units.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2018 is presented as if the Tacara
acquisition was completed on March 31, 2018.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three months ended March 31,
2018 and for the year ended December 31, 2017, are presented as if the Tacara acquisition was completed on
January 1, 2017.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared to comply
with Article 11 of Regulation S-X, as promulgated by the SEC. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated
financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements of the Company and notes
thereto presented in the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2018
and Special Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. The unaudited pro forma balance sheet
and income statements are not necessarily indicative of what the actual financial position and operating results
would have been had the Tacara acquisition occurred on March 31, 2018 and January 1, 2017, respectively, nor
are they indicative of future operating results of the Company.
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Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.
Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

As of March 31, 2018
(Unaudited, in thousands, except share and per share data)

NREIT
Historical

Tacara
Acquisition

NREIT
Total

Assets
Investments in real estate, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $114,021 $ 46,102(a) $160,123
Investments in real estate-related securities, at fair value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,218 — 20,218
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60,861 (47,336)(b) 13,525
Intangible assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,359 1,807(a) 8,166
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 578 — 578

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $202,037 $ 573 $202,610

Liabilities and Equity
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,762 $ 573(c) $ 3,335
Due to affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,383 — 3,383
Intangible liabilities, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 234 — 234

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,379 $ 573 $ 6,952

Equity
Common stock – Class N shares, $0.01 par value per share, 100,000,000

shares authorized, 20,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at
March 31, 2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200 — 200

Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 197,301 — 197,301
Accumulated deficit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,843) — (1,843)

Total equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 195,658 — 195,658

Total liabilities and equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $202,037 $ 573 $202,610

(a) Represents the purchase price of the Tacara acquisition, including transactions costs, as if the transaction
was completed as of March 31, 2018. The Company determined this acquisition was an asset acquisition in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and
allocated the total purchase price to the assets acquired based on relative fair value. The following table
details the allocation of the Tacara purchase price:

March 31,
2018 Useful Lives

Building and building improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $36,320 40 years
Land and land improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,385 15 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,397 5 years
In-place lease intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,807 1 year

Total purchase price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $47,909

(b) The Tacara acquisition was funded using the Company’s cash on hand.

(c) Represents credits provided to the Company at closing related to the proration of property taxes ($491) and
adjustments for prepaid rent and security deposits ($82).
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Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.
Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2018
(Unaudited, in thousands, except share and per share data)

NREIT
Historical

Tacara
Acquisition

Pro Forma
Adjustments

NREIT Pro
Forma

Revenues
Rental revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,268 $807(a) $ — $ 3,075
Tenant reimbursement income and other income . . . . . . . 554 65(a) — 619

Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,822 872 — 3,694
Expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Rental property operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 966 472(a)(b) — 1,438
General and administrative expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,691 110(a) — 1,801
Advisory fee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 295 — — 295
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,773 — 335(c) 2,108

Total expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,725 582 335 5,642
Other income
Income from real estate-related securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . 388 — — 388

Total other income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 388 — — 388
Net (loss) income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (1,515) $290 $(335) $ (1,560)

Net loss per share of common stock – basic and
diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (0.08) $ (0.09)

Weighted-average shares of common stock
outstanding, basic and diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,148,333 18,148,333

(a) Represents the operating results attributable to Tacara for the three months ended March 31, 2018.

(b) The following table details the rental property operating expenses for Tacara for the three months ended
March 31, 2018:

Tacara

Repairs and maintenance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 23
Utilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47
Leasing and advertising . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36
Real estate taxes and insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 366

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $472

(c) Represents depreciation and amortization expense for the Tacara assets for the three months ended
March 31, 2018. The Company records depreciation and amortization on a straight-line basis. The following
table details the depreciation and amortization expense for the three months ended March 31, 2018:

Tacara

Depreciation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $297
Amortization expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $335
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Nuveen Global Cities REIT, Inc.
Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
(Unaudited, in thousands, except share and per share data)

NREIT
Historical (a)

Tacara
Acquisition

Pro Forma
Adjustments

NREIT
Pro Forma

Revenues
Rental revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 374 $1,061(b) $ — $ 1,435
Tenant reimbursement and parking income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 121(b) — 137

Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 390 1,182 — 1,572
Expenses
Rental property operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 175 417(b)(c) — 592
General and administrative expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 238 382(b) — 620
Advisory fee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44 — — 44
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 261 — 3,147(d) 3,408

Total expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 718 799 3,147 4,664
Net (loss) income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (328) $ 383 $(3,147) $ (3,092)

Net loss per share of common stock – basic and diluted . . . . $ (0.30) $ (2.81)

Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding,
basic and diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,099,405 1,099,405

(a) Historical financial information obtained from NREIT’s 2017 Special Report on Form 10-K. As noted in the
Special Report, NREIT was formed on May 1, 2017 and subsequently capitalized on May 19, 2017. The
Company’s real estate operations did not commence until December 2017.

(b) Represents the operating results attributable to Tacara for the year ended December 31, 2017.

(c) The following table details the rental property operating expenses for Tacara for the year ended
December 31, 2017:

Tacara

Repairs and maintenance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 61
Utilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 78
Leasing and advertising . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 117
Real estate taxes and insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 161

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $417

(d) Represents depreciation and amortization expense for the Tacara assets for the year ended December 31,
2017. The Company records depreciation and amortization on a straight-line basis. The following table
details the depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2017:

Tacara

Depreciation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,187
Amortization expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,960

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,147
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